MP seeks funds to restore Conner House

Derelict ruin stands silent

By CHARLES MILLS Special to the Potomac News

Marching 54 miles in 48 hours, stonewall Jackson passed through Thoroughtare Gap, undiscovered by John Pope's Federal army, and reached the railroad station at Bristoe at sunset on Aug. 26, 1862.

That night he captured the immense Union supply depot at Manassas Junction. Jackson spent the 27th supplying his troops from the Union stores. Early in the day a Federal brigade under General G.W. Taylor came out by train from Alexandria to investigate rumors of a cavalry raid on Manassas. Upon arriving within a quarter of a mile of the Bul Run bridge, the Federals found the railroad track and ditches piled high with debris of two trains which had escaped from Jackson's men the evening before at Bristoe. Fleeing through the darkness toward Alexandria, the second train plowed into the rear of the leading one, reducing both to wreckage.

Taylor filed his men across the railroad bridge on foot, deployed, and advanced toward the junction in three lines of battle. On the Liberia plantation, Taylor's troops ran into four brigades of A.P. Hill's division, which had come out to meet them, accompanied by Stuart's cavalry and several hatteries. Shattered by the artillery fire and then attacked in front and on the flanks, the Federals were swept back across Bull Run creek with three hundred casualties, including General Taylor killed. The Federals field northward toward Fairfax Court House, losing all their equipment. This action, the dramatic prelude to the Second Battle of Manassas, surged around a brown stone building which until recently seemed destined for the wrecking ball.

As twilight approaches and thousands of bees seep into the gapping crevices of a crumbling brown stone house, it is hard to imagine that this derelict structure was once the headquarters of the most powerful army in the Confederacy.

orrent structure was once the headquarters of the most powerful army in the Confederacy. The papers of George C. Round, a Union Signal Corps officer who became a prominent citizen of Manassas after the war, provided the key to unraveling the history of "the Conner House."

Round's papers, unearthed by Manassas historian VanLoan Naisawald, describes Manassas in 1865. Round refers to a stone house east of See related stories, Pages B10, B11

the city which served as the headquarters of General Joseph E. Johnston during the First Battle of Manassas, and served as a field hospital after the Second Battle of Manassas. Census and tax records indicate no other stone house in the area except what is now called the "Conner House."

Archaeological excavations confirm the evidence of the historical records. Excavations conducted by the Northern Virginia Community College produced an array of Civil War artifacts. Repairs made under one window for damage done by a cannon shell are clearly visible. The east chimney, reported in writings of the period to have been struck by cannon fire, shows signs of repair. Portions of the older stone chimney have clearly been replaced by other material.

Based on both archaeological and documentary evidence, the Virginia Historical Landmark Commission added the Conner House to the state's official register of properties worthy of preservation.

The Conner House, Manassas Park's only historical landmark, stands at the edge of the city's industrial tract. The City Council recently authorized City Manager Jerry Davis to submit an application for funds to the National Trust for Historical Preservation. The funds would be used to commission a study of methods available to restore the house.





Variously described as "Yellow Hospital," "Bloom's House," and "Conner House": a Civil War view.

The building was once the headquarters of the most powerful army in the Confederacy: the command of Gen. Joseph E. Johnston.



By Charles Mills - Special to the Potomac News The Conner House as it looks today